
11 
 

A MEETING OF THE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
WAS HELD ON 9 DECEMBER 2015 

   
Councillors; Allen, Mrs Batty (P), Beavis (P), Forder(P), Mrs Forder (P), Foster-Reed (P), 
Geddes, Gill (P), Hazel, Hylands (P), Scard (P) and Mrs Wright (P). 
  
 
 
24. APOLOGIES 
  
Apologies for inability to attend the meeting were submitted on behalf of Councillors Allen and  
Geddes.   
 
25. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
  
There were no declarations of interest. 
             
 
26. MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD 30 SEPTEMBER 2015 
 
RESOLVED: That the minutes of the meeting of the Committee held on 30 September 2015 
be approved and signed by the Chairman as a true and correct record. 
 
27.  REPORTS TO BE RECEIVED 
 
i. Public Access and use of Fort Brockhurst.  
 
The Committee were advised that a reply had been received from English Heritage and that 
they were working on options for the summer of 2016, with a view to extending the 
programme for 2017 if there was interest. Work would need to be undertaken on the access 
to the Fort, as well as the toilets and café. In addition, some conservation work would need 
to be undertaken.  
 
It was hoped that the volunteer programme could be developed and expanded to include 
30-40 volunteers. 
 
The Committee were advised that there had been delays to the programme due to the 
diversion of resources as a result of Operation Stack, and repairs to the Fort.  
 
Members expressed disappointment at the lack of progress and communication particularly 
as the initial meeting had been positive.  
 
It was acknowledged that the organisation had undergone a restructure and that it would be 
taking time for it to adjust and settle.  
 
Members hoped that work on the Fort could be progressed in line with other local Forts, as 
recently covered in the press.  
 
It was felt that the matter should be progressed further within English Heritage if 
correspondence was not received in January.  
 
 



12 
 

i. Update on Bus Services 
The Chairman advised that an element of the follow up from the Scrutiny of the Bus 
Services was that a comprehensive guide to transport options available, including to Queen 
Alexandra Hospital, be compiled. The Committee was advised that this was near 
completion and that the work had been undertaken by the Gosport Older Person’s Forum.  
 
The Committee recognised the value of the work undertaken and the important contribution 
Councillors had made to the process.  
 

ii. Key Stages  
 
Councillor Edgar addressed the Committee. He advised that he was accompanied by Brian 
Pope and Naomi Carter. He advised that Hampshire was a leading authority in Children’s 
Services and that Councillor Roy Perry had been involved in work nationally which had 
allowed for involvement and input regarding educational issues.  
 
The Committee was advised that Gosport Borough Council had always taken a keen 
interest in Educational matters in Gosport despite it not being the education authority.  
 
Brian Pope, Interim Director of Education and Inclusion was invited to address the 
Committee. He advised that he welcomed the opportunity to address the Committee and 
that a key factor in the educational attainment of was the level of disadvantage in the 
Borough, the education of young people was far wider than just the learning that takes 
place in schools.  
 
The Committee were advised that there were issues with recruitment of teachers 
throughout the whole southern region and that this included Gosport. Teachers were 
reluctant to apply for positions at disadvantaged schools as positions were less secure, 
similarly, Head teacher roles were attracting few applicants, with typically only 2-3 
applicants per position. Secondary Schools were struggling to recruit English and Maths 
teachers, recently a course had taken place at the University of Chichester converting non 
Maths and English specialists to enable them to teach these subjects. In addition, some 
Councils had expanded their Keyworker housing schemes to attract candidates.  
 
Some schools had no choice but to employ more Newly Qualified Teachers, as not enough 
experienced teachers were applying for roles in disadvantaged schools.  
 
Mr Pope presented the Committee with the statistics of attainment for stages including early 
years, Key Stage 1, Key Stage 2 and Key Stage 4. 
 
Early years assessment was play based and attainment in Gosport was high and above 
average.  
 
The Committee were advised that for Key Stage 1 reading and mathematics attainment was 
above the national average, writing was one percent below, but had increased by 10% in 3 
years, whereas the national average had only increased by three percent.  
 
In Key Stage 2 the attainment for all three subjects was slightly below the national average, 
but that it was overall on track.  
 
The Committee was advised of the Key Stage 4 attainment figures. There had been a 
significant change in the recording of statistics for KS4 as vocational qualifications such as 



13 
 

BTECs no longer counted towards the A-C figure. This had led to what looked like a 
significant drop in attainment, BTECS were vocational qualifications that were often more 
popular in areas of disadvantage as they were often more practical. The Committee were 
advised that it was worth noting that the national average attainment of 5 A-C’s had 
dropped by 11% since 2013, however, the Gosport average attainment had remained the 
same.  
 
There was a concern that further changes would be made to the attainment targets and that 
the results of 8 GCSE’s would be considered, not 5. 
 
The Committee was advised that businesses were now looking beyond academic 
qualifications and looking at the potential of students, which was evident at companies in 
Gosport and beyond. There were many apprenticeships now available providing solid 
training for young people. The Committee was advised that success was often only 
measured by the number of students that attended Oxbridge, rather than the overall picture 
of successes of young people.   
 
In answer to a Member’s question, the Committee was advised that employers looked for 
good communication skills as well as qualifications. 
 
The Committee was advised that they although there were many academies within 
Hampshire, this would not exclude a school from receiving support from the education 
authority. There had been examples of support being transferred between academies and 
county run schools, the view of the authority was to support all children in their education.  
 
Members thanked Mr Pope for his presentation; Mr Pope advised the Committee that he 
was grateful for their interest.  
 
28.  DEVELOPMENT OF A WORK PROGRAMME 
 
A. Requests for Scrutiny 

    A Member expressed concern that they were not aware of the proposed developments in 
relation to the Alver Valley and on the Daedalus site.  

 
    The Borough Solicitor and Deputy Chief Executive advised the Committee of a brief 

overview of the current situations for both sites, and advised that she would request for a 
briefing note listing decisions taken on the Alver Valley site by the Community Board be 
placed in the MIB  

 
    Members were advised that a number of the developments proposed on the Daedalus site 

were in the Fareham Borough Council owned part of the site.  
 

 
B. Work Programme 
The Chairman highlighted the work programme attached to the agenda for the meeting and 
asked for comments.  It was agreed that the work programme was fit for purpose. 
 
29.  ANY OTHER BUSINESS 
There was no other business. 
 
The meeting concluded 19:37 
 



14 
 

CHAIRMAN 


